1983

**American Coal Co., Emery Mining Corp., And State Insurance Fund
v. Terry W. Sandstrom, Industrial Commission of Utah, And
Second Injury Fund : Brief of Plaintiff**

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

Plaintiffs seek review of an Order of the Industrial Commission of Utah awarding Worker's Compensation benefits to Mr. Terry W. Sandstrom, but refusing plaintiff's request for reimbursement from the Second Injury Fund of the Industrial Commission.

DISPOSITION BY THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION

An initial hearing was held before Administrative Law Judge Richard G. Sumsion at 1:00 p.m. on the 11th day of January, 1983. At that time the parties, Terry Sandstrom, The State Insurance Fund, and the Second Injury Fund, entered into a stipulated compensation agreement, stipulating to a 20% permanent partial disability, 10% from a pre-existing condition and 10% from an accident incurred

While Sandstrom was in the employ of the plaintiff in this case. On January 21, 1983, the Administrative Law Judge, Richard G. Sur, entered his Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order in the On January 31, 1983, plaintiffs herein filed a Motion for Review challenging the Administrative Law Judge's failure to award contribution to the State Insurance Fund from the Second Injury Fund for medical expenses and temporary total compensation paid. On March 18, 1983, the Industrial Commission denied plaintiff's Motion for Review.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiffs are requesting that the portion of the Order of the Industrial Commission denying plaintiffs recovery from the Second Injury Fund for 50% of the temporary total disability compensation and 50% of the medical expenses paid during total temporary disability be vacated and the case remanded to the Industrial Commission. An Order of the Commission should be entered granting plaintiff reimbursement from the Second Injury Fund of 50% of total temporary disability compensation paid and 50% of the medical expenses that the State Insurance Fund has paid to the applicant herein.

FACTS

Mr. Terry W. Sandstrom, the applicant herein, sustained personal injury in four separate accidents arising out of or in the course of his employment. The dates of these accidents are as follows: November 21, 1977, May 4, 1979, December 17, 1980, and November 23, 1981. (R. at 39)

At the time of the January 21, 1977 accident and the May 4, 1979 accident, Sandstrom was employed by American Coal Company. In 1980, applicant was employed by Emery Mining Corporation and in November of 1981 he was employed by Gusco, Inc., (P. at 39).

As a result of these accidents, applicant has suffered a total overall impairment of 20% permanent partial disability of the whole man to his back and 10% permanent partial disability of the whole man to his neck. (R. at 39). The injury to plaintiff's back is the subject matter of this appeal. The State Insurance Fund and the Second Injury Fund have stipulated that 10% of permanent partial disability to the back results from the 1981 accident and 10% is attributable to the 1977 accident. (R. at 39, 43).

ISSUE ON APPEAL

Is the State Insurance Fund entitled to reimbursement for 50% of the temporary total disability compensation and medical expenses which it has paid the applicant as a result of the November 23, 1981, injury to his lower back?

ARGUMENT

IN ORDER TO EFFECTUATE THE LEGISLATIVE PURPOSE OF ENCOURAGING EMPLOYERS TO HIRE HANDICAPPED PERSONS, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED § 35-1-69, MUST BE INTERPRETED AS MANDATING THAT THE SECOND INJURY FUND REIMBURSE THE EMPLOYER OR ITS INSURANCE CARRIER FOR A SHARE OF MEDICAL EXPENSES AND TOTAL TEMPORARY DISABILITY COMPENSATION EQUAL TO THE PERCENTAGE OF PERMANENT PARTIAL DISABILITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ANY PRE-EXISTING MEDICAL CONDITION.

This Court's pre-1981 interpretation of Section 35-1-69, allowing contribution from the Second Injury Fund for all types of Worker's Compensation claims, is still applicable since the relevant language of that statute remains basically the same. McPhie v. United States Steel Corp., 551 P.2d 504 (Utah 1976); Intermountain Health Care Inc. v. Ortega, 562 P.2d 617 (Utah 1977); White v. Industrial Commission, 604 P.2d 478 (Utah 1979); Intermountain Smelting Corp. v. Capitano, 610 P.2d 334 (Utah 1980).

Furthermore, this Court's interpretation of Section 35-1-69, subsequent to the 1981 amendments thereof, demonstrates that the Court's interpretation has not changed. Paoli v. Cottonwood Hospital, 656 P.2d 410 (Utah 1982); Unites States Fidelity & Guaranty Co. v. Industrial Commission of Utah, 647 P.2d 754 (Utah 1983).

In Intermountain Health Care, Inc. v. Ortega, 562 P.2d 611 (Utah 1977), this court held that 35-1-69 required proportionate contribution from the special fund (now the Second Injury Fund) for compensation and medical benefits in cases involving pre-existing injuries. In Intermountain Health Care, the Commission found that claimant had a permanent partial disability of 30%, 10% attributable to her pre-existing psychological condition and 20% attributable to an accident which occurred while on the job. The Commission failed, however, to require the Special Fund to pay its proportionate share of medical expenses. This Court found that 35-1-69 required the Commission to pay one-third of the medical expenses and compensation because one-third of the employee's permanent partial disability was attributable to her pre-existing condition. In the instant case, the parties stipulated that 50% of Sandstrom's disability is due to a pre-existing injury. Therefore, under the holding of Intermountain Health Care, the Second Injury Fund should reimburse the State Insurance Fund for 50% of the medical expenses and temporary total disability compensation that it has paid to Sandstrom. This Court extended the holding in Intermountain Health Care, to cover temporary total disability compensation, in the case of White v. Industrial Commission of Utah, 604 P.2d 478 (Utah 1979). In White, the court consolidated several cases, each of which depended upon judicial construction of § 35-1-69. In each case this Court held that the Second Injury Fund

must reimburse the insurance carrier for the proportion of medical expenses and temporary total disability compensation equal to the percentage of permanent partial disability applicable to the pre-existing injury. Though § 35-1-69 has since been amended, the language upon which this court relied in both White and Intermountain Health Care remains basically the same. That language, as quoted in White, follows:

If any employee who has previously incurred a permanent incapacity by accident or injury, disease, or congenital causes, sustains an industrial injury for which compensation and medical care is provided by this title that results in permanent incapacity which is substantially greater than he would have incurred if he had not had the pre-existing incapacity, compensation and medical care, which medical care and other related items are outlined in § 35-1-81, shall be awarded on the basis of the combined injuries, but the liability of the employer for such compensation and medical care shall be for the industrial injury only and the remainder shall be paid out of the special fund provided for in §35-1-68 (1) hereinafter referred to as the "special fund".

Id. at 479.

That language, even after the amendments, remains basically the same:

35-1-69. Combined injuries resulting in permanent incapacity - Payment out of second injury fund - Training of employee. (1) If any employee who has previously incurred a permanent incapacity by accidental injury, disease, or congenital causes, sustains an industrial injury for which either compensation and or medical care, or both is provided by this title that results in permanent incapacity which is substantially greater than he would have incurred if he had not had the pre-existing incapacity, or which aggravates or is aggravated by such pre-existing incapacity, compensation and medical care, which medical care and other related items are as outlined in Section 35-1-81, shall be awarded on the basis of the combined injuries, but the liability of the employer for such compensation and medical care, and other related items shall be for the industrial injury only and the remainder shall be paid out of the special second injury fund provided for in Section 35-1-68 (1) hereinafter referred to as the "special fund".

Utah Code Ann. §35-1-69(Supp. 1981).

Both versions of the statute provide that the employer shall be responsible for the industrial injury only and that the remainder shall be paid out of the Second Injury Fund. In the instant case requiring the State Insurance Fund to pay 100% of the temporary total disability compensation and the medical expenses incurred is requiring the State Insurance Fund to incur liability for more than just the industrial injury.

Essentially, the State Insurance Fund is being required to pay for the medical expenses and total temporary disability compensation attributable to the employee's pre-existing incapacity as well as those attributable to the industrial injury. Such a requirement clearly discourages the hiring of handicapped employees since medical expenses for such persons are likely to be larger and the period of temporary total disability longer than for injured employees not suffering from pre-existing medical conditions. Discouraging employers from hiring handicapped workers defeats the legislative purpose of § 35-1-69.

In Intermountain Smelting Corp. v. Capitano, 610 P.2d 334 (Utah 1980), this Court again held that the Commission erred in ordering the employer to pay all medical compensation and temporary total disability benefits when a portion of the disability was attributable to a pre-existing injury. Again, the language of § 35-1-69 upon which the Court relies remains basically the same. Discussing the language, the Court stated:

We think that the reasonable conclusion to be drawn therefrom is that the employer is responsible for only the percentage of compensation and medical care which the injury occurring in the employment bears to the applicant's total disability. This conclusion is also born out by the final provision that any amount which has been paid by the employer in excess of the portion

attributable to said industrial injury shall be reimbursed to him out of the special fund.
(Emphasis added)

id. at 337.

In 1981 the Legislature added two paragraphs to § 35-1-69. The Second Injury Fund, apparently, relies on the second paragraph to argue that the Second Injury Fund is not liable for its proportionate share of temporary total disability compensation and medical expenses paid out. That paragraph is as follows:

Where the payment of temporary disability benefits, medical expenses, or other related items are required as a result of the industrial injury subject to this section, the employer or its insurance carrier shall be responsible for all such temporary benefits, medical care, or other related items up to the end of the period of temporary total disability resulting from the industrial injury. Any allocation of disability, benefits, medical care, or other related items following such a period shall be made between the employer or its insurer and the second injury fund as provided for herein, and any payments made by the employer and its insurance carrier in excess of its proportionate share shall be recoverable at the time of the award for combined disabilities if any is made hereunder.

Utah Code Ann. § 35-1-69 (Supp. 1981).

The only logical reading of that paragraph, the only reading which preserves the legislative purpose of 35-1-69, is that the employer or its insurance carrier shall pay benefits and expenses during the period of temporary total disability compensation and then shall be reimbursed from the Second Injury Fund after the stabilization date when determination of the percentage of permanent partial disability attributable to each accident can be made. The language in that paragraph, ". . . the employer or it's insurance carrier shall be responsible . . .", requires that interpretation. The Legislature has purposely used the word "responsible" and not the word "liable", which indicates that the purpose of adding this paragraph was to clarify the administrative process by which the

employee would be paid. This paragraph simplifies that procedure by mandating that the employer or insurance company pay all benefits to the employee and that allocations be made afterwards in order to avoid a denial of liability by the employer to force the allocation issue before the Commission. Furthermore, the statute clearly states that any allocations shall be made after the period of temporary total disability and that any payment "made by the employer or the insurance carrier in excess of its proportionate shares shall be recoverable." The statute states: "Any allocation of disability benefits, medical or other related items following such period shall be made between the employer or his insurer and the second injury fund as provided for herein, . . ." That statement provides that the allocation shall be made following the period of total temporary disability. Apparently the Second Injury Fund, has misinterpreted that statement to read that the allocation will be made of benefits and medical care following the period of temporary total disability compensation. Further, that sentence provides that allocation shall be made between the employer and the Second Injury Fund as "provided for herein". The statute provides that allocation shall be made according to the proportionate share of disability attributable to the industrial injury and that **attributable to the pre-existing condition**. In this case, that allocation would be 50% of the temporary total compensation and medical expenses to be paid by the State Insurance Fund, and 50% to be paid by the Second Injury Fund. Therefore, the State Insurance Fund is entitled to a reimbursement of 50% of the temporary total disability compensation and the medical expenses it has paid to the employee in this case. In Intermountain Smelting Corp, this court reversed the Commission's order apportioning all medical expenses and temporary total disability

to the insurance carrier: ". . . the refusal to require contribution from the special fund for temporary total disability and medical and hospital expenses, as discussed in this opinion, is reversed." Id.

A recent decision by this Court, indicates that the interpretation of § 35-1-69, even after the 1981 amendments, still requires reimbursement by the Second Injury Fund for temporary total disability compensation and medical expenses. In United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co., v. Industrial Commission of Utah, 657 P.2d 764 (Utah 1983), this court interpreted § 35-1-69 as amended. Though that case involved several statutes and a fairly complicated fact situation, this court did discuss the implication and purpose of § 35-1-69:

Explicit statutory authority exists to apportion compensation awards and medical costs between employers and the Second Injury Fund, provided pertinent conditions are met. Basically, those conditions are three in number: 1) permanent incapacity occasioned by accidental injury, disease or congenital causes, followed by 2) subsequent injury resulting in further permanent incapacity which is 3) substantially greater than that which would have been incurred if there had been no pre-existing incapacity. Those conditions having been met, the liability of the employer is assessed "on the basis of the percentage of permanent physical impairment attributable to the industrial injury only and the remainder shall be payable out of the said special (second injury) fund."
(Emphasis added)

Id. at 767.

In the instant case, as in United States Fidelity, all three conditions have been met to allow apportioning of compensation awards and medical costs between the State Insurance Fund and the Second Injury Fund. Moreover, nowhere in the Court's discussion of 35-1-69 has the word compensation been modified, in such a way, as to suggest that total temporary disability compensation is not to be apportioned between the employer or the insurance carrier and the Second Injury Fund. Furthermore, it is clear from the Court's

discussion of this statute that medical expenses are to be apportioned between the employer and its insurance carrier and the Second Injury Fund. Finally, the Court, again, discussed the purpose of § 35-1-69.

Furthermore, encouragement of an employer to retain an injured or disabled employee after an injury without the risk of further liability for payment of compensation and medical expenses should a subsequent injury occur, seems wholly consistent with the recognized statutory purpose which is to encourage employers to hire disabled persons.

Id.


CONCLUSION

The Industrial Commission's refusal to order the Second Injury Fund to reimburse the State Insurance Fund for its proportionate share of medical expenses and temporary total compensation rests on a faulty interpretation of Utah Code Ann. § 35-1-69 (Supp. 1981) which tends to defeat the Legislative purpose of encouraging employers to hire handicapped workers. Therefore, plaintiffs respectfully requests that this Court vacate that portion of the Order of the Industrial Commission denying plaintiff's recovery from the Second Injury Fund for 50% of the temporary total disability compensation and 50% of the medical expenses paid Mr. Sandstrom during the period of total temporary disability.