1983

**American Coal Co., Emery Mining Corp., And State Insurance Fund
v. Terry W. Sandstrom, Industrial Commission of Utah, And
Second Injury Fund : Writ Of Review From An Order of the
Industrial Commission Of Utah**

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a writ of review from an order of the Industrial Commission.

DISPOSITION BY THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION

The defendant Second Injury Fund concurs in the statement of the disposition by the Industrial Commission contained in the briefs of the plaintiffs and the defendant Industrial Commission.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The defendant Second Injury Fund respectfully requests that this court affirm the order of the Industrial Commission.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The defendant Second Injury Fund concurs in the statement of facts contained in the briefs of the plaintiffs and the defendant Industrial Commission. This defendant notes additionally that it has paid to the defendant Sandstrom the permanent partial disability benefits for which the Industrial Commission held it liable.

ISSUE ON APPEAL

The issue on appeal is whether the State Insurance Fund is entitled to reimbursement from the Second Injury Fund for medical expenses and temporary disability benefits paid by the State Insurance Fund to the applicant during his initial period of temporary disability.

ARGUMENT

THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION CORRECTLY APPLIED THE RECENTLY AMENDED PROVISIONS OF UTAH CODE ANNOTATED §35-1-69 TO HOLD THE PLAINTIFFS LIABLE FOR COMPENSATION AND MEDICAL EXPENSES PAYABLE TO THE APPLICANT UP TO THE DATE OF HIS STABILIZATION

The Industrial Commission has ruled that since the applicant's cause of action arose after the effective date of recent amendments of Utah Code Anno. §35-1-69, payment of his temporary total disability benefits and medical expenses up to date of his stabilization is the exclusive responsibility of the employer and its carrier. The Commission concluded that the Second Injury Fund is not liable for a portion of those initial

payments as it might have been before the statute was amended. The plaintiffs contend the amendment did not change the rights of an employer to reimbursement from the Second Injury Fund. At issue is the correct construction of the following paragraph added to §35-1-69 as part of the several amendments by the Legislature in 1981: (A copy of the entire provision is included as Appendix "A").

Where the payment of temporary total disability benefits, medical expenses, or other related items are required as a result of the industrial injury subject to this section, the employer or its insurance carrier shall be responsible for all such temporary benefits, medical care, or other related items up to the end of the period of temporary total disability resulting from the industrial injury. Any allocation of disability benefits, medical care, or other related items following such period shall be made between the employer or its insurer and the second injury fund as provided for herein, and any payments made by the employer or its insurance carrier in excess of its proportionate share shall be recoverable at the time of the award for combined disabilities if any is made hereunder.

As noted previously, the plaintiff State Insurance Fund and the defendant Second Injury Fund stipulated before the Commission that the applicant had a 20% permanent partial disability of the back, 10% of which was caused by an industrial injury of November 23, 1981 and 10% of which was due to pre-existing conditions. (R.195,212). Benefits for his permanent partial disability have been paid. The applicant incurred

medical expenses and was totally disabled for a period of time after the accident. Though the record does not reflect the period of his temporary total disability, the State Insurance Fund paid all amounts owing during this period and submitted to the Industrial Commission the question whether the Second Injury Fund should reimburse it for 50% of these expenses. (R.194,197).

The Industrial Commission interpreted the amended portion of Section 69 cited above to mean that during a period of temporary total disability which follows an industrial accident that has aggravated a pre-existing condition, the employer is liable for the full amount of temporary total disability and medical expenses up to the end of that period, even if the applicant's permanent partial disability is in part attributable to pre-existing conditions. The Commission ruled that after this period ends, his benefits are subject to apportionment between those parties and entered its order based upon this construction of the statute. (R.213,216).

The question raised by the plaintiffs about the proper application of the amended provision of Utah Code Anno. §35-1-69 is one of first impression. This Court should affirm the order of the Industrial Commission because its construction of the statute is clearly correct in view of the obvious meaning of the language used and the purpose of the Legislature in amending the statute.

The plaintiffs correctly note in their brief that prior to enactment of the 1981 amendments, this Court construed

Section 69 of the Workers Compensation Act to mean that whenever a worker sustained a permanent disability as a result of an industrial accident that was substantially greater because it combined with a pre-existing disability, the Second Injury Fund was liable for a proportionate share of temporary total disability compensation and medical expenses as well as permanent disability benefits. This construction was first announced in the case of Intermountain Health Care, Inc. v. Ortega, 562 P.2d 617 (Utah 1977) and continued to be applied in later cases, i.e. Intermountain Smelting Corp. v. Capitano, 610 P.2d 334 (Utah 1980).

The plaintiffs incorrectly assert, however, that the cases of Paoli v. Cottonwood Hospital, 656 P.2d 430 (Utah 1982) and U.S. Fid. & Guar. Co. v. Industrial Comm'n. of Utah, 657 P.2d 764 (Utah 1983) are cases arising under the amended statutes which demonstrate that this Court construes the amendment to have made no change in the law. Though these cases were decided after the 1981 amendments were enacted, they arose out of industrial accidents which occurred before the amendments; the Paoli accident in 1979, Paoli v. Cottonwood Hospital, supra, 656 P.2d at 420; and the most recent of Anderton's accidents in the U.S. Fid. & Guar. case was in July, 1975, U.S. Fed. Guar. Co. v. Industrial Comm'n. of Utah, supra, 657 P.2d at 764. In neither case did the Court apply or construe the amendment whose meaning is disputed in this case.

This court has held that its fundamental responsibility when interpreting a statute is to ascertain the intention of the Legislature, Johnson v. State Tax Commission, 17 Utah 2d 337, 411 P.2d 831 (1966). The first step in statutory construction is to examine the plain and ordinary meaning of the language employed to determine whether the intention of the Legislature is apparant, Grant v. Utah State Land Board, 26 Utah 2d 100, 485 P.2d 1035 (1971); Spangenberg v. Cheney School Dist., No. 30, 97 Wash. 2d 118, 641 P.2d 163 (1983).

The defendant Second Injury Fund contends that in this instance the intention of the Legislature is apparant from the clear meaning of the language used. With reference to medical expenses and temporary disability benefits the statute provides that,

. . . the employer or its insurance carrier shall be responsible for all such temporary benefits, medical care, or other related items up to the end of the period of temporary total disability resulting from the injury.

With reference to obligations arising after the initial period, it provides that

Any allocation of disability benefits, medical care, or other related items following such period shall be made between the employer or its insurer and the second injury fund provided for herein . . .

The plaintiff State Insurance Fund argues that since the Legislature provided that employers would be "responsible" for

temporary benefits, it did not mean to make them "liable" for temporary benefits. It contends that even though the statute refers to allocations of benefits "following" the initial period of temporary disability, the Legislature really intended to allocate benefits which arise during the initial period, exactly as it had been done before the amendment, without substantive change in the relative liabilities of employers and the Second Injury Fund.

The word "responsible" is defined at p.1476 in Black's Law Dictionary, (Revised 4th Ed., 1968) as follows:

"Liable, legally accountable, or answerable."

In accordance is Webster's Third New International Dictionary (1966), p.1935 which lists "liable" as a synonym of "responsible".

The State Insurance Fund advocates a construction of the statute which is inconsistent with it's plain meaning. Giving the words used their ordinary effect, it is apparant that the Legislature intended to distinguish between temporary benefits accruing before the initial period of temporary disability ends and other benefits which may accrue later. The first category of benefits is one for which the employer and its carrier are soley liable and the second category is one which is to be apportioned with the Second Injury Fund if the other requirements of Section 69 are satisfied.

Even if this statute is regarded as ambiguous, the rules of construction which must then be applied resolve the ambiguity in the defendant's favor. One presumption which

arises in construing an amendment to a statute is that the legislature was aware of the construction given to a statute by the Supreme Court before it was amended, Greenhalgh v. Payson City, 530 P.2d 799 (Utah 1975); Lekan v. P&L Fire Protection Co., 609 P.2d 1289 (Okla. 1980); Woodson v. State, 95 Wash. 2d 257, 623 P.2d 683 (1980). A second presumption is that when a statute is amended, the Legislature is presumed to intend a change in the law by amendment. Lincoln County v. Fidelity and Deposit Co. of Maryland, 102 Idaho 489, 632 P.2d 678 (1981); State v. Turpin, 94 Wash. 2d 820, 620 P.2d 990 (1980). The State Insurance Fund contends that the Legislature did not intend to change the liability of the Second Injury Fund for temporary benefits whereas the plain language used as well as the presumption which applies strongly suggest the contrary.

Another common rule of construction is that courts should construe a statute so that it's effect is sensible and in keeping with the purpose of the statute. Young v. Barney, 20 Utah 2d 108, 433 P.2d 846 (1967), Andrus v. Allred, 17 Utah 2d 106, 404 P.2d 972 (1965). In a real sense, the need for medical treatment and the initial period of disability from work arise because a worker is injured and not because he had a pre-existing condition which until the accident had not prevented him from working. It is consistent with the purpose of Section 69 and the Worker's Compensation Act

as a whole to make these immediate post-injury expenses the exclusive responsibility of the employer and his carrier and to limit the liability of the Second Injury Fund to permanent disability benefits attributable to pre-existing conditions and to medical expenses and total disability benefits which arise after the effects of the accident itself have resolved.

When application of the rules of construction does not completely resolve a dispute about the meaning of a statute, courts are entitled to examine the legislative history of the enactment in question. Parker v. Rampton, 28 Utah 2d 36, 497 P.2d 848 (1972); State v. Winkle, 528 P.2d 467 (Utah 1974) reh.den 535 P.2d 82. More specifically, this Court may take judicial notice of legislative proceedings, including discussions and debates about the meaning of proposed legislation by members of the Legislature prior to its enactment, whether reflected in a legislative journal or by an official transcript. State ex rel. Blankenship v. Freeman, 440 P.2d 744 (Okla. 1968); Industrial Commission v. Milka, 159 Colo. 114, 410 P.2d 181 (1966); Knight v. Employment Security Agency, 88 Idaho 262, 398 P.2d 643 (1965).

Included as Appendix B to this brief is a copy of an official transcript of the proceedings in the Utah State Senate of March 5, 1981 relating to S.B. 187 which contained the 1981 amendments to Utah Code Anno. §35-1-69. Senator K.S. Cornaby, Majority Leader and sponsor of the bill, introduced it to the Senate with an explanation that he was a member of the Industrial

Commission Advisory Board which had drafted the legislation.
With reference to its purpose he said,

The Bill before you, Senate Bill 187,
is a bill which comes out of that
Advisory Committee to take care of
three or four items. One is a number
of housekeeping items, two is to
address a couple of issues which have
arisen concerning the Second Injury
Fund, and to more equitably allocate
the compensation for workmen's
injuries between the Fund and the
insurance companies.
(emphasis supplied)

Transcript of Senate proceedings, page 2, (Appendix B). Following
this explanation, the bill was adopted without amendment or
negative vote.

Senator Cornaby's remarks remove any doubt about the
purpose of the amended provision. The Legislature intended
to change the relative liability of the Second Injury Fund and
workmen's compensation carriers and to accomplish a "more
equitable allocation of compensation" between them. The more
equitable allocation was accomplished by the elimination of
the Second Injury Fund's liability for temporary benefits.